CARE, MAINTENANCE AND DISPOSAL OF SCHOOL DISTRICT RECORDS

School district records shall be housed in the central administration office of the school district. It shall be the responsibility of the superintendent to oversee the maintenance and accuracy of the records. The following records shall be kept and preserved according to the schedule below:

Secretary's financial records Permanently	•	Written co
• Treasurer's financial records Permanently	•	Cancelled
• Minutes of the Board of Directors Permanently		bank state
Annual audit reports Permanently		and relate
Annual budget Permanently	•	Recording
 Permanent record of individual 	•	Program g
pupil Permanently		
 Records of payment of judgments 	•	Nonpayro
Against the school district20 years	•	Payroll re
Bonds and bond coupons10 years		

•	Written contracts	10 years
•	Cancelled warrants, check stubs,	
	bank statements, bills, invoices,	
	and related records	5 years
•	Recordings of closed meetings	1 year
•	Program grants	As determined
		by the grant
•	Nonpayroll personnel records	7 years
•	Payroll records	3 years

Employees' records shall be housed in the central administration office of the school district. The employees' records shall be maintained by the superintendent, the building administrator, the employee's immediate supervisor, and the board secretary.

An inventory of the furniture, equipment, and other nonconsumable items other than real property of the school district shall be conducted annually under the supervision of the superintendent. This report shall be filed with the board secretary.

The permanent and cumulative records of students currently enrolled in the school district shall be housed in the central administration office of the attendance center where the student attends. Permanent records must be housed in a fireproof vault. The building administrator shall be responsible for keeping these records current. Records of students who have graduated or are no longer enrolled in the school district shall be housed in the high school principal's office. These records will be maintained by the high school principal.

The superintendent may microfilm or microfiche school district records and may destroy paper copies of the records if they are more than three years old. A properly authenticated reproduction of a microfilmed record meets the same legal requirements as the original record

Legal Reference: City of Sioux City v. Greater Sioux City Press Club, 421 N.W.2d 895 (Iowa 1988).

City of Dubuque v. Telegraph Herald, Inc., 297 N.W.2d 523 (Iowa 1980).

Iowa Code §§ 22.3, .7; 279.8, .15, .16; 304 (2005).

281 I.A.C. 12.3(6).

Cross Reference: 206.3 Secretary-Treasurer

218 Board of Directors' Records

401.6 Employee Records506 Student Records

901.1 Public Examination of School District Records

Approved April 2012 Reviewed March 2012 Revised _____

INSURANCE PROGRAM

The board will maintain a comprehensive insurance program to provide adequate coverage against major types of risk, loss, or damage, as well as legal liability. The board will purchase insurance at replacement values, when possible, after reviewing the costs and availability of such insurance. The comprehensive insurance program shall be reviewed once every three years. Insurance will only be purchased through legally licensed Iowa insurance agents.

The school district will assume the risk of property damage, legal liability, and dishonesty in cases in which the exposure is so small or dispersed that a loss does not significantly affect the operation of the education program or financial condition of the school district.

Insurance of buildings, structures, or property in the open will not generally be purchased to cover loss exposures below \$1,000 unless such insurance is required by statute or contract.

The board may retain a private organization for fixed assets management services.

Administration of the insurance program, making recommendations for additional insurance coverage, placing the insurance coverage and loss prevention activities shall be the responsibility of the superintendent. The purchasing manager shall be responsible for maintaining the fixed assets management system, processing claims and maintaining loss records.

Legal Reference: Iowa Code §§ 20.9; 85.2; 279.12, .28; 285.5(6), .10(6); 296.7; 298A; 517A.1; 670.7 (2005).

1974 Op. Att'y Gen. 171. 1972 Op. Att'y Gen. 676.

Cross Reference: 205.2 Board Member Liability

804 Safety Program

Approved April 2012 Reviewed March 2012 Revised _____

INSURANCE REPORT

At the annual meeting each year, the board shall receive a written report indicating the types, amounts of, and	cost of the
insurance for the school district. This report shall include bonds purchased for employees and board officers.	It shall be
in written form and sent to the board with the agenda for the board meeting.	

in written form and sent to the board with the agenda for the board meeting.			
It shall be the responsibility of the board secretary to file this report with the board.			
Legal Reference:	Iowa Code § 279.8 (2005).		
Cross Reference:	709.1 Insurance Program		
Approved April 2012	Reviewed Ma	rch 2012	Revised

SCHOOL FOOD PROGRAM

The school district will operate a school food program in each attendance center. The school food program services will include hot breakfast and lunches through participation in the National School Lunch Program and supplementary foods for students during the school day. Students may bring their own food from home and purchase milk or juice and other incidental items

School food service facilities are provided to serve students and employees when school is in session and during school-related activities. They may also be used under the supervision of the food services director for food service to employee groups, parent-teacher meetings, civic organizations meeting for the purpose of better understanding the schools, and senior citizens in accordance with board policy.

The school food program is operated on a nonprofit basis. The revenues of the school food program will be used only for paying the regular operating costs of the school food program. Supplies of the school food program shall only be used for the school food program.

The board will set, and periodically review, the prices for school meals and special milk programs. It shall be the responsibility of the superintendent to make a recommendation regarding the prices of school meals and milk.

It shall be the responsibility of food services director/s to administer the program and to cooperate with the superintendent and head cook for the proper functioning of the school food program.

Legal Reference: 42 U.S.C. §§ 1751 et seq. (1994).

7 C.F.R. Pt. 210 *et seq.* (2002). Iowa Code ch. 283A (2005).

281 I.A.C. 58.

Cross Reference: 710 School Food Services

905.3 Use of School District Facilities and Equipment

Approved April 2012 Reviewed March 2012 Revised

FREE OR REDUCED COST MEALS ELIGIBILITY

Students enrolled and attending school in the school district, who are unable to afford the special milk program, the cost or a portion of the cost of the school lunch, breakfast and supplemental foods, will be provided the school food program services at no cost or at a reduced cost.

It shall be the responsibility of the central office to determine if a student qualifies for free or reduced cost school food services. Students, whom the principal believes are improperly nourished, will not be denied the school food program services simply because the paperwork has not been completed.

Employees, students and others will be required to purchase tickets for meals consumed.

It shall be the responsibility of the superintendent to develop administrative regulations for implementing this policy.

Legal Reference: 42 U.S.C. §§ 1751 et seq. (1994).

7 C.F.R. Pt. 210 *et seq.* (2002). Iowa Code ch. 283A (2005).

281 I.A.C. 58.

Cross Reference: 710 School Food Services

Approved April 2012 Reviewed March 2012 Revised

VENDING MACHINES

Food served or purchased by students during the school day and food served or purchased for other than special
circumstances shall be approved by the superintendent. Vending machines in the school building shall be the
responsibility of the building principal. Purchases from the vending machines, other than juice machines, shall not be
made during the lunch periods.

It shall be the responsibility of the superintendent to develop administrative regulations for	or the use of vending mach	iines
and other sales of food to students.		

Legal Reference: 42 U.S.C. §§ 1751 et seq. (1994).

7 C.F.R. Pt. 210 et seq. (2002). Iowa Code ch. 283A (2005).

281 I.A.C. 58.

Cross Reference: 504.6 Student Fund Raising

710 School Food Services

Approved April 2012 Reviewed March 2012 Revised _____

RECORDS AND REPORTS

The records of the school food program shall be accurate and up-to-date. It shall be the responsibility of the board	
secretary to maintain the records of the program in compliance with this policy and the accounting system of the school	ol
district.	

district.	
The board secretary shall report the food service activities to the board on a monthly basis.	

Legal Reference: 42 U.S.C. §§ 1751 *et seq.* (1994). 7 C.F.R. Pt. 210 *et seq.* (2002).

Iowa Code ch. 283A (2005).

281 I.A.C. 58.

Cross Reference: 710 School Food Services

Approved May 2012 Reviewed April 2012 Revised _____